City of Edgerton, Kansas Minutes of City Council Regular Session January 25, 2024

A Regular Session of the City Council (the Council) was held in the Edgerton City Hall, 404 E. Nelson, Edgerton, Kansas January 25, 2024. The meeting convened at 7:00PM with Mayor Roberts presiding.

1. ROLL CALL

Clay Longanecker	present
Josh Lewis	present
Deb Lebakken	present
Bill Malloy	absent
Ron Conus	present

With a quorum present, the meeting commenced.

- Staff in attendance: City Administrator, Beth Linn City Attorney, Lee Hendricks City Clerk, Alex Clower Finance Director, Karen Kindle Accountant, Justin Vermillion Public Works Director, Dan Merkh Public Works Superintendent, Trey Whitaker Holly Robertson, CIP Project Manager Marketing & Communications Manager, Kara Banks Development Services Director, Zach Moore
- 2. **WELCOME**. Mayor Roberts welcomed all in attendance.
- 3. **PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE**. All present participated in the Pledge of Allegiance.

<u>Consent Agenda</u> (Consent Agenda items will be acted upon by one motion unless a Council member requests an item be removed for discussion and separate action)

- 4. Approve Minutes from January 11, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting.
- 5. Approve Large Animal Permit for Glyn Powers, 1606 W 8th Street.
- 6. Approve Contract with Weather Or Not®, Inc. to provide Weather Forecasting Services for 2024.

Mayor Roberts stated Councilmember Lebakken requested item 6 be removed for further discussion.

Councilmember Lebakken moved to approve the remaining items on the Consent Agenda, seconded by Councilmember Longanecker. The Consent Agenda with item 6 removed was approved, 4-0.

Item 6 Discussion:

Councilmember Lebakken asked what this company does for this price.

Mr. Whitaker stated they do 24-hour weather forecasting via text and email, which includes multiple alerts a day. He stated Weather or Not is used for notifying staff of potential severe weather, lighting, etc. to allow staff time to alert the community should events need to be canceled or postponed. He stated they also provide flood details and winter notifications to allow staff better time to prepare during snow season. He stated during event and snow season, staff receives regular communications about the forecast leading up to an event, including mid-range forecasts which provides a 4 week look ahead to allow us better opportunities to prepare for projects, construction, etc. He stated the mid-range forecast for this last snow event told us it would be an above average event and it even surpassed that. He added that extra notification gave staff more time to prepare for the event including purchases of salt or brine that might need to be made.

Mayor Roberts stated he questioned this service when the City first got it, but the first year Weather or Not was calling lightning strikes 30 minutes out at events, which allowed time to certain things to be taken down at those events. He stated he's seen their forecast and he believes it is far more accurate than the local weather station and keeps updating as the storm moves through. He stated this service does give the ability for crews to get out and begin putting product down before.

Mr. Whitaker stated the City uses cooperative purchasing with Prairie Village's contract. He stated for the last event Weather or Not reached out to staff at 2 AM and asked to verify what their pavement sensor was reading so they could issue more accurate information.

Ms. Linn stated the company is very proactive and consistent. She stated when talking about weather, summer is just as important as winter for City purposes and being prepared for these events is crucial.

Councilmember Lewis stated in the long rung too, it will save money on labor and materials.

Ms. Linn agreed and stated for those winter and summer events, it gives staff the ability to predict what jobs can get done and focus on what's the highest importance.

Councilmember Longanecker asked if there are other companies that offer this service.

Mr. Whitaker stated there are a couple others, but they are not local.

Councilmember Conus stated he did snow removal for many years, and they subscribed to a weather service as well. He stated having a local forecast to plan is helpful because each area can be so different.

Mr. Whitaker stated having someone on the other line who is a meteorologist is helpful.

Councilmember Lebakken asked about the term of this contract which shows an agreement from 2023-2025.

Mr. Whitaker stated that is the contract for Prairie Village attached and theirs will be set for that period. Edgerton's contract if approved will be for one year but this allows the price to stay the same for the duration set.

With no further questions or comments, Mayor Roberts requested motion to approve the contract with Weather or Not for 2024.

Councilmember Lebakken moved to approve the agreement. Councilmember Lewis seconded the motion. The agreement was approved, 4-0.

Regular Agenda

7. Declaration. There were no declarations made.

8. **Public Comments.** There were no public comments made.

Business Requiring Action

There were no business items on the agenda.

9. **Report by the City Administrator**

• Quarterly Sheriff's Office Report

Representatives from the Sheriff's Office including Captain Martinez, Lieutenant Koch, and Master Deputy Johnson addressed the council to present their quarterly report. He stated the majority of the citations have come from Dept. Johnson and there has been an uptick in the numbers in all offense groups, including commercial vehicle inspections. Lt. Koch stated Dept. Johnson is among those that are all level 1 certified. He stated level 1 certification requires 50 inspections to be completed each year to maintain an up-to-date certification.

Capt. Martinez stated there have been roughly 4,300 calls for District 3 with 2,700 of those being calls in Edgerton or Intermodal areas.

Mayor Roberts stated he is interested in numbers to get percentage of calls served. Councilmember Lewis requested the Sheriff's Office provide quarterly changes instead of changes year-over-year.

Mayor and Council thanked them for their attendance and the data given.

• Municipal Court Update

Ms. Linn referenced the quarterly report for Municipal Court. She stated staff will continue to work to provide updated numbers that help show the day in and day out in court.

• NEW - Community Development Quarterly Report

Mr. Moore referenced the quarterly report included for Community Development. He stated all numbers are in line with years past. He stated on the planning and zoning side, JCCC CDL Training Facility is breaking ground, staff is continuing to work to update the current building code suite from 2006 to 2018 and the draft for the Comprehensive Plan for the City is ready for review for future work session and consideration for council.

• Report on Street Sweeper

Mr. Merkh stated in 2016 the City purchased the sweeper with a lease to own option. The sweeper has an equipment life set at 7 years, which meant it would have been due for replacement last year. Because the sweeper continues to have maintenance problems, staff is asking Council to decide among three options for replacement. He stated the three options include service based, rental, or buying. He stated the current level of service is one standard sweeping a month, pre- and post-event sweepings and then periodically if needed.

He stated service based would be calling a contractor to come and do the work based on an agreed upon fee. He stated right now that price is about \$4,800 month for one sweep a month. He stated this price does not include events. Estimated out over the life of the equipment, it would be roughly \$400,000 spent.

He stated the rental option is quoted at one week a month and it is limited to what is available for those 5 workdays. The rented machine would not always be the same or time frame where the City can do the work. He stated this was quoted at \$4,000 a week. Over the 7-year lifetime of a typical sweeper, the total cost would be roughly \$336,000.

He stated the final option would be to purchase. Currently the average quote is between \$325,000 and \$375,000. He stated this would be staff's recommended path as we will own the equipment and the level of service we can provide is not reliant on other companies.

He reviewed the types of sweepers that are on the market right now.

He stated staff would recommend to continue down the path to include purchase in 2025, it was included in budget conversations and \$350,000 with a line item to hold funds.

Councilmember Longanecker asked what is more cost effective.

Mr. Merkh stated it depends on the level of cleanliness that the Council expects.

Councilmember Longanecker asked what the price difference is between mechanical or vacuum sweepers.

Mr. Merkh stated some make and models are cheaper on vacuum but it was a smaller vehicle and had one motor, but all are within 10-20% of each other.

Councilmember Longanecker asked what is worn out on the current sweeper.

Mr. Merkh stated we have replaced the radiator, but the bulk of what is being fixed is in the sweeping mechanisms. He stated Public Works has had over 28 work orders for emergency or urgent repairs.

Ms. Linn stated tonight is based on what direction council would like staff to go in before beginning all the research and then bring back better options and price for review and approval.

Councilmember Lewis asked how often the current machine is used and what is the total cost when we own vs. renting or contracting.

Mayor Roberts asked if the contract option is calculated with lane miles or hours.

Mr. Whitaker stated it is a basic hourly rate for sweeping then there are contractual lane miles.

Councilmember Conus asked what we are doing with the current sweeper.

Mr. Merkh stated it will be kept operational until we are able to purchase another at which time staff's recommendation would be to put it on an auction site.

Ms. Linn stated our concern right now is that it might not even make it that long, it has already reached its useful life. Staff is recommending keeping to 2025 to look for the right solution.

Councilmember Conus asked how it would be financed in 2025.

Ms. Linn stated those decisions have yet to be decided. Tonight is about direction from council. Whether that be to own or contract out.

Mayor Roberts stated this does lead to question, what really is the benefit to sweeping the streets.

Mr. Merkh stated that is a very valid question, especially when looking at costs related. He stated sweeping helps maintain clear inlets, there are a number of homes where the driveway is lower than the road, if streets are cluttered, it could lead to buildup and potential disaster for some. He stated it helps with projects to delineate ownership and keep things at higher level of expectations.

Councilmember Longanecker stated it keeps us esthetically compared to other cities.

Mr. Merkh stated the goal would still be once a month cleaning as we currently do.

Councilmember Lewis stated he would think it would be better to own it.

Councilmember Lebakken agreed and stated we could then use it whenever we may need it.

Mayor Roberts stated we may be able to rent on now for a week, but will that still be the case in 7 years. He stated he thinks it would be most economical to move forward with the purchase option.

Councilmember Conus agreed and stated it would allow flexibility when we own it.

There were no further questions or comments.

• Updated Job Descriptions

Ms. Linn stated based on the work session last meeting, she has job descriptions for approval with salary ranges.

Councilmember Conus asked if this salary range includes total benefits.

Ms. Linn stated this is just the salary ranges for those positions.

Mayor Roberts stated motions are needed for job descriptions and he is open to doing all four at one time if that is okay with the City Attorney.

Mr. Hendricks stated yes, that can be done.

Mayor Roberts then requested motion to approve the four job descriptions for Assistant to the City Administrator, Recreation Superintendent, Assistant City Clerk and Parks and Recreation Director.

Councilmember Lewis moved to approve, seconded by Councilmember Longanecker. The new job descriptions were approved, 4-0.

10. Report by the Mayor

Mayor Roberts stated he has no report.

11. Future Meeting Reminders

Mayor Roberts reminded the Council of the future meetings for Council and Planning Commission.

12. Adjourn

Councilmember Lebakken moved to adjourn, seconded by Councilmember Lewis. All in favor. The meeting was adjourned at 8:44PM.

Submitted by Alexandria Clower, City Clerk